· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			COPY
Joseph HENRY			A	pollan
VS.		CASE	no 20	07-CP-0143
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI		ED		Pellee(S
		8mm n		
	FEB	THE CLERK		
	OFFICE	OF THE CLERK PEME COURT PEME COUR		
	Con	<u> </u>		······································
		——————————————————————————————————————		
Ro-DIV	BRICF	EOP N	nnella	nT
<u> </u>	- WAL	TUK III	PEZKAI	
		<u> </u>	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
				·
		<u></u>	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
				
				<u> </u>
	<u> </u>	·	<u> </u>

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

This Appeal Brief calls upon this Court of Appeals to decide some serious Federal and State Constitutional Questions on the Issues. They are as follows:

ISSUE ONE

Whether "Errors affecting Fundamental Constitutional Rights, such as the Right to a Legal Sentence, may be excepted from Procedural Bars (Time Limitation - Under Mississippi Rules of Civil Procedure (MRCP) - six months to file a MRCP Rule 60 (b) Motion) which would otherwise prevent their Consideration?

A. Whether, The Right to be Free from an Illegal Sentence is a Fundamental Right as Required for Post-Conviction Relief?"

ISSUE TWO

Whether the Trial Court Comitted Error in improperly Sentencing Henry as a Habitual Offender Under Section 99-19-81, where at Henry's Sentencing Hearing, the State failed / Refused to offer any Conclusively Evidence and properly prove beyond a reasonable doubt that Henry was, in Fact, A Twice Convicted Felon?

A. Whether the Mississippi Double Jeopardy Clause Precludes the State from having a Second Chance to establish Henry's Habitual Offender Status, where there was no Evidence offered at Henry's Sentencing Hearing by the State to support a Habitual Offender Conviction/Sentence?

ISSUE THREE

Whether the Trial Court erred in failing to conduct an evidentiary hearing before Denying Henry's Rule 60 (b) Motion, as being Six Months Time Barred Under MRCP, where Henry's Rule 60 (b) Motion contained issues (Illegal Sentence and Ineffective Assistance of Counsel) of fact mixed with issues of Law?

ISSUE FOUR

Whether, when a Pro Se' Appellant offers Substantial Proof (Trial Court Plea Hearing Records) of his claim that he is Legally Innocence of being Sentence as an Habitual Offender, and if he is deprived of an opportunity to be heard on the 'Merits', would the 'Action' run about of the Due Process and Equal Protection Clause of the U.S. Constitution, and would this 'Action' Result in a Fundamental Miscarriage of Justice?

STATEMENT OF INCARCERATION

The Appellant is incarcerated in the Mississippi Department of Corrections and is being presently housed in the Kemper-Neshoba County Regional Correctional Facility (KNRCF) at Dekalb, MS, in service of prison terms imposed as a Result of Conviction and Sentence had and imposed by the trial Court. Appellant has been continuously confined in Regards to such Sentence since date of Conviction and imposition by the trial Court.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE THE COURSE OF THE PROCEEDINGS

Joseph Henry was indicted on August 30, 2002, in the Circuit

Court of Harrison County, MS, for the offense of Sell or Transfer of Cocaine, a Schedule I Controlled Substance, to Dianne Evans. Also, in the same indictment, Henry was presented as an Habitual Criminal, subject to be Sentence, Pursuant to Section 99-19-81, MCA of 1972. (Circuit Court Clerk's Records, here-in-after, CR-19,20). Appellant Henry Subsequently entered an Guilty Plea to such charge and was Sentenced on March 6,2006, to a term of Ten (10) years in the Custody of the Mississippi Department of Corrections to be served day for day without hope of parole, under section 99-19-81, MCA of 1972. (CR. 25-26).

Appellant subsequently filed a "Motion For Evidentiary Hearing of Counsel's Ineffectiveness at Senteciny," on or about April 4, 2006. (CR. 19: This Motion is not listed at all in the Court Clerk's Records, Civil Filing Sheet; but the Motion is Listed in Appellant's Rule 60 (b)

Motion, as a Excert Records [CR. 73-143]).

Appellant further filed a "Notice of Appeal," on or about April 6,2006. (CR. -78: This "Notice of Appeal" Motion is, also, not Listed at all in the Court Clerk's Records, 'Civil Filing Sheet' on this present Appeal, but the 'Notice of Appeal' Motion is listed in Appellant's Rule 60 (b) Motion, as a 'Excert Records' [CR. 73-1437]. (CR. -83)

Appellant further filed a "Motion For Reconsideration of Sentence," on or about June 5, 2006. (CR.-80: This Motion is also not listed at all in the Court Clerks Records, 'Civil Filing Sheet' on the present Appeal, but the Motion is listed in Appellant's Rule 60 (b) Motion, as a 'Excert Records' [CR. 73-1437).

Appellant submits that the Circuit Court Judge Clark, denied his Motion for Reconsideration of Sentence; on July 11, 2006. (CR. -82) Also, Judge Clark, issued an Order, on July 11,2006 which Denied Appellant, Joseph Henry, Leave to Appeal In Forma Pauperis in Cause No. B2401-2003-00707. (CR.-81: These two (2) Orders are not Listed in the Court Clerk's Civil Filing Sheet in the present Appeal).

On August 14,2006, Appellant was issued his Case No. 2006-TS-0068-COA, in the Mississippi Court of Appeals, which said Court of Appeals docketed the Cause but stated, "the Appellant has Substantially failed to Prosecute this Appeal," by not paying the filing fee to the Lower Court Clerk. (CR. 83-84)

Appellant submits that, while his Sentence of ten (10) years, as an Habitual Offender was on Appeal in the Mississippi Court of Appeals in Case No. 2006-TS-0068-COA, Appellant filed a Motion For Post Conviction, Relief (CR. 5-10) and a "Motion For Evidentary Hearing of Counsel's Ineffectiveness at Both The Plea and At Sentencing (CR. 11-18), on August 24, 2006, in the Harrison Co.

Circuit Court in Cause No. B-2401-03-00707.

Appellant further states that on September 27, 2006, Circuit Court Judge Roger T. Clark, issued an Order, Denying, Appellant, Henry's, Post Conviction Relief; (CR. 21-28) Also, on September 27, 2006, Circuit Court Judge Clark, issued another Order Deny-ing Appellant, Henry's 'Motion For Evidentiary Hearing of Counsel's Ineffectiveness at Both The Plea and Sentencing" (CR. 29-30). Appellant did not Appeal these two (2) Denials by Judge Clark

within the 30 days Appeal Process because 1) his Illegal Sentence of ten (10) years, as an Habitual Offender was still on Appeal and 2) Appellant was seeking to get his Plea Hearing Transcripts and Motion To Withdraw Transcripts from the Harrison Co. Court Reporter that this New Evidence (Transcripts) would Manifest the proof for his Relief in his Case, but this process was taking an un-usally extended amount of time. (Over an Six-Months Period, as shown by these Clerk's Records). (CR. 73-143).

On 10-19-06, Hon. Gayle Parker, Harrison Co. Circuit Clerk, forwarded Appellant, Joseph Henry, a Response to his Requested Letter pertaining to the Cost of his Appeal, which said Response by this Clerk stated that "The Costs you paid for your Appeal was 249.

00 . (Balance &) . (CR. 85).

On September 29,2006, Appellant received Notice from the Miss-issippi Court of Appeals informing him that his Case had been docketed and assigned case number 2006-KP-00688-COA. Also, the Court Clerk informed Appellant that he had "forty (40) days of the date of this Letter," to file his Brief in this Case. (CR.86)
On October 26,2006, Appellant filed a Motion For Extension of Time, to file his Appeal Brief (CR.87). Appellant had file a Petition For An Order To Receive Guilty Plea Transcripts," (CR.88), pursuant to the Recent Case, White v. State, 867 So. 2d 1047, 1049 (Miss. Ct. App. 2004), in hopes that these Plea Hearing Transcripts could 'shade' some light on his 'I llegal Sentence' in Cause No. B2401-2003-707. Further, Appellant had to file another Motion For Extension of Time, to this Court in Case No. 2006-KP-0068 - COA, (CR. 89), because Appellant had not receive any response from the Harrison Co. Circuit Court on his Petition for an Order To Receive his Guilty Plea Transcripts, thereby, this Court of Appeals Granted Appellant the Extension of Time Until December 19, 2006; but stated to Appellant, "No Further extension of Time will be Granted." (CR. 90).

Appellant submits that because he could not receive any Response Appellant submits that because he could not receive any Kesponse from the Circuit Court about a Copy of his Plea Hearing Transcript, and to staying diligently in seeking Relief in his Case, Appellant had to write an Request to the Circuit Court Reporter, Ms. Patricia L. Bodin, where on January 10, 2007, Ms. Bodin (CSR), responsed back to Appellant's Request, to pay the Cost for a Copy of his Plea Hearing Transcript, by saying that "A Transcript of the plea hearing of 3/6/06 will cost #60.00." (CR. 91)

Appellant further submits that this Newly Discovered Evidence Plea Hearing Transcripts, would have to be presented and filed back in the Harrison Co. Circuit Court before being presented to to this Court of Appeals in Case No. 2006-KP-00683-COA. Thereby

to this Court of Appeals in Case No. 2006-KP-00688-COA, thereby, Appellant had to Voluntary Dismiss his Appeal in this Cause,

pursuant to MRAP Rule 42 (b), because of the holding in this Court in Gray v. State, 819 So. 2d 542 (N.3) (Miss. Ct. App. 2001). (CR.92). This Court of Appeals Granted by an Order Appellant's Motion to Voluntary Dismiss his Appeal on January 17, 2007 (CR.93), and the Mandate from this Order was issued on January 18, 2007. (CR.94).

Appellant states that he forwarded to the Harrison Co. Circuit Court Reporter, Ms Bodin, a \$60.00 Money Order from the Kenper-Neshoba Regional Correctional Facility (KNRCF) to pay for a Certified Copy of his March 6, 2006, Plea Hearing Transcript, which said Certified Transcript consisted of 23 Pages at \$3.00 per page. (CR.95). On or about March 11, 2007, Appellant received his Certified Copy of his March 6, 2006, Plea Hearing Transcript.

(CR. 96-118)

Appellant submits that his trial Counsel Mr. Robert H. Koon, on November 8, 2005, filed a "Motion To Withdraw as Attorney of Record for Defendant," because Appellant had filed a Request for Assistance against Mr. Koon with the Mississippi Bar, where Appellant stated to the MB, "Mr. Koon is providing him with inadequated Representation." (CR. 136-138) Thereby, on December 5, 2005, a "Motion Hearing" was held in the Harrison Co. Circuit Court before the Hon. Jerry O. Terry, Circuit Tudge. (CR 120-131) Further, the Circuit Court Judge Terry, on December 5, 2005, issued an Order Sustaining Motion To Withdraw as Attorney of Record and set Appellant's trial on February 6, 2006. (CR. 134)

Appellant states that he wrote two (2) Letters (one on 2/1/07 and one on 2/19/07) to Ms. Cheryl E. Sablich, Harrison Co. Circuit Court Reporter, Requesting a Certified Copy of the December 5, 2005, Motion To Withdraw Hearing, and on February 26, 2007, Ms Cheryl E. Sablich, CSR, Responded back to Appellant by stating, "An estimate for transcribing the hearing on December 5, 2005, is \$55.00. Upon Receipt of a Money Order in that amount, I will place it in line for transcription." (See

exhibit - AZ in this Appeal Brief). Appellant further states that on April 13, 2007, he received an Response from Ms Sablich, CSR, which said Response stated, "I am in receipt of your letter dated April 14, 2007 and your letter and check dated March 15, 2007. Appellant was inquiring, why it was taking so long for him to receive this Transcript.) Official Court Reporters are afforded 60 days to complete transcripts which would calculate my time out to around May 15, 2007. I have other transcripts in front of this one." (See Exhibit - BZ, in this Appeal Brief).

(See Exhibit - BZ, in this Appeal Brief).

Appellant submits that on April 23,2007, Ms Cheryl E. Sablich, CSR, forwarded a 'Statement of Fees' to Appellant which said 'Statement' stated, "Original Transcript" of the December 5,2005, 'Motion Hearing', consists of 12 pages at \$3.50 per page. (CR 119) Therefore, Appellant received the certified copy of the 'Motion Hearing' Transcript (CR. 120-131), on or about April 29, 2007.

Appellant submits that on or about June 27, 2007, only two months after he had received this Newly Discovered Evidence [The March 6, 2006, Plea Hearing Transcripts and the December 5, 2005 'Motion To Withdraw Transcripts 7, he filed a "Motion For Relief From Order Pursuant To FRCP Rule 60 (b)," back into the Harrison Co. Circuit Court in Cause No. B2401-2003-707 and A2401-2006-00309, where this trial Court could have the first opportunity to determine the validity (The True) of this Newly Discovered Evidence. (CR 33-72 and Excerpt Records CR. 73-143).

Appellant states that on July 5, 2007, Circuit Court Judge
Roger T. Clark, Denied Appellant's Rule 60 (b) Motion by stating: "The Order denying Henry's petition for Post-Conviction
Relief was entered on or about September 27, 2006. Henry did
not file this Rule 60 (b) Motion until July 2, 2007, well after
six-month time limit." Thereby, this Judge Clark, had Denied
Appellant's Rule 60 (b) Motion as being Procedural Time Barred
Pursuant to MRCP 60 (b) ("The Motion shall be made within

a reasonable time, and for Reason (1). (2) and (3) not more than six months after the entered of Judgment, also, this Judge Clark did not make any written findings or Conclusion of Law on the Merits (issues) in Appellant's Rule 60 (6) Motion.

Appellant submits that on or about July 14,2007, he filed an 'Motion For Reconsideration Pursuant To MRCP Rule 52 (b), where Appellant stated that "the Circuit Court Judge Clark's written findings on the Time Limitation or Procedural Bar of Appellant's Rule 60 (b) Motion, was correct but Judge Clark failed to make any written findings and Conclusions of Law on Petitioner's Fundamental Miscarriage of Justice; Issue of being Legally Factually (Prima Facie) Innocence of being Sentence as an Habitual Offender, as shown by the Newly Discovered Evidence Plea Hearing Transcripts (CR 96-118) and Motion Hearing To Withdraw Transcripts (CR 120-131). Thereby, this Rule 52 (b) Motion was filed to enable this Appellante Court to obtain a correct understanding of the factual issues determined by the Trial Court as a basis for the the Conclusions of Law and Judgment entered thereon but as this Court will find on or about August 24, 2007 (CR.166), the Circuit Judge Clark, Denied, Appellant's Rule 60 (b) Motion Claims (Illegal Sentence).

Appellant submits that from this Denial, on or about July 24,2007, he filed a Notice of Appeal, Designation of Records and Application for Informa Pauperis (CR. 156-165), in the Harrison Co. Circuit Court in Cause No. A2401-2006-00304. Thereby, on August 31,2007, Circuit Court Judge Clark issued an Order to Grant Appellant Leave To Appeal Informa Pauperis in the Mississippi Court of Appeals. (CR.167)

Appellant, further states that on August 31,2007, Circuit Court

Appeal Informa Pauperis in the Mississippi Court of Appeals. (CR.167)

Appellant further states that on August 31, 2007, Circuit Court

Judge Clark, issued an Order to Grant in Part, the Requested

Records and Transcripts. (CR.168). Thereby, the Grand Total Fees

for these Records and Transcripts on the Appeal in this Cause is

STANDARD OF REVIEW

In reviewing a trial Court's decision to deny a Motion for Post-Conviction Relief the Standard of Review is Clear. The Trial Court's denial will not be Reversed absent a finding that the trial Court's decision was clearly erroneous. <u>Kirksey v. State</u>, 728 So. 2d 565,567

(Miss. 1999).

In the instant Case, well-settled Law dictates that the trial Court's decision was clearly erroneous since the trial Court failed/
Refused to address the Substantial and Meritorious Clairs made in the petition, i.e., the Records (Newly Discovered Evidence-Plea Hearing Transcripts and Motion To Withdraw Hearing Transcripts) clearly demonstrates that the State at Henry's Plea and Sentencing Hearing failed to produce any sufficient Evidences (As the Applicate Law Requires) at the Hearing, by testimonies or Certified Records, which would have proved beyond a Reasonable doubt that Henry was indeed "Convicted twice previously of any State felony or Federal Crime upon charges separately brought and arising out of separate incidents at different times," where the trial Court upheld the State's Recommendation by sentencing Henry to a term of Ten (10) years as an Habitual Offender. Vince v. State, 844 So. 2d 510,517 (P22) (Miss. Ct. App. 2003); Short v. State, 929 So. 2d 420,426 (P15) (Miss. Ct. App. 2006).

Further, in the instant Case, well-settled Law dictates that the trial Court's decision to Procedural Bar Henry's Rule 60 (b) Motion (A Six-Months Limitation to file under MRCP), was clearly erroneous where the Records demonstrates that Henry, was challenging a Illegal / Improper Sentence, thereby, under the Applicate Mississippi Law, Errors affecting Fundamental Constitutional Rights, such as the Right to a Legal Sentence, may be excepted from Pro-

cedural Bars which would otherwise Prevent their Consideration. Ivy V. 5tate, 731 So. 2d 601 (Miss. 1949); Weaver v. State, 785 So. 2d 1085 (Miss. 2001); Chancellor v. State, 809 So. 2d 700 (Miss. 2001).

Lastly, in reviewing this Appeal, from the trial Court's decision not to allow the true Facts underlying Henry's claims to be adequately developed in the trial Court's proceeding, this Mississippi Court of Appeals must consider, the benefit of Case Law concerned with the judiciary handling of, and disposition of Complaints and pleadings filed by Pro Se' prisioners. As early as the year 1948: In <u>Price v.</u> <u>Johnson</u>, 68 5.Ct. 1049, 334 U.S. 266 (U.S. Cal. 1948) the United State's Supreme Court held that:

"it was enough if the prisoner (Henry) presented on allegation and supporting facts which if borne out of proof, would entitle him to Relief. Prisoner (Henry) are often unlearned in the Law and unfamiliar with the complicated Rules of Pleadings. Since they (Henry) act so often as their own Counsel in Habeas Corpus (Post - Conviction Motion or Rule 60 (b) Motion) proceedings, we cannot impose on them the same high standards of Legal art which we might place on the members of the Legal Profession. Especially is this true in a Case like this where the imposition of those standards would have a prejudicial effect on the prisoners (Henry) inartistically drawn Petition."

See also <u>Cooper v. Pate</u>, 378 U.S. 546,84 S.Ct. 1733 (1964); <u>Haines v.</u>
<u>Kerner</u>, 404 U.S. 519, 92 S.Ct. 594 (1972), (Pro Se' prisoner's complaint must be liberally construed."); <u>Cramer v. Skinner</u>, 931 F. 2d 1020 (5th Cir. 1991) and <u>Mc Fadden v. State</u>, 542 So. 2d 871,874 (Miss. 1989), ("Courts must accept Pro Se' prisoner's allegations in pleadings as

frue, and not samarily dismiss them. Prisoners (Henry) Complaint should not be dismissed because inartfully drafted.)

STATEMENT OF FACTS RELEVANT TO ISSUES

On November 15,2002, Appellant, Joseph Henry, was arrested for the Crime of Sale | Delivery Crack Cocaine by the Harrison County Sheriff Department and the Arresting Officer was Ricky Dedeaux (MS Bureau of Nurcotics, Gulfport, MS). (See Exhibit - CZ, attached to this Appeal Brief). [Note: Appellant had Requested in his "Designation of Records" (CR 159-160) that his Arrest Warrant, Affidavits and Investigation Report be made part of the Appeal Records but Circuit Judge Roger T. Clark, on August 31, 2007, issued an Order (CR. 168) to Granted in Park, Appellant's Designation of Records "Request, thereby, Appellant was Denied his Request for the Arrest Warrant, Affidavits and Investigation Report to be made part of his Appeal Records and this Action by Judge Clark Reflect a true

sign of 'Abuse of Discretion' (Bias to Pro Se' filing). To Dn September, 2003, Joseph Henry, was Indicted in Cause No. B. 2401-2003-707 by the first Judicial District, Harrison County, Grand Juross of the State of Mississippi, for the Crime of Sell or Transfer Cocaine, a Schedule II Controlled Substance, to Dianne Evans, Also, this same Grand Turors, further presented, that Joseph Henry, was a habitual Criminal who was subject to being sentence as such Pursuant to Section 99-19-81, Miss: Code of 1972, as amended. (CR. 19-20) On December 5,2005, a Motion Hearing was held in Cause No. B2401-03-707, where Attorney for Joseph Henry, Mr. Robert H. Koon, had filed a Motion To Withdraw as Counsel of Records. (CR. 120-131) This Hearing will Reveal that Henry and Mr. Koon, were having some indifferents in his Case and Henry had filed a complaint to the Mississippi Bar by stating that Mr. Koon have not done his Job with Regards to his Case. And at this Hearing, Mr. Koon, did acknowledge

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