JOSEPH HENRY

VS.

APPELLANT

FILED

JAN 29 2008

OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS NO. 2007-CP-1435-COA

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: W. GLENN WATTS

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR NO.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

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

2. The record reflects that Henry received effective assistance of counsel. There is lack of evidence in the record of either "deficient" performance or of "prejudice" to Henry as a result of any actions, or advise by his guilty plea counsel. Henry's complaint of prejudice by virtue of his counsel not offering mitigating evidence is wide of the mark. C.P. 14. The record reflects that Mr. Robert H. Koon negotiated a ten year reduced sentence for Henry. Henry is enjoying the benefit of that reduced sentence instead of the thirty year maximum for transfer of cocaine.

In his Petition, and at his guilty plea hearing, Henry stated that he "was satisfied with the advice and help he(his counsel) has given me." R. 4; C.P. 22. The record also indicates that Mr.

Koon stated for the record evidence favorable to Henry prior to his being sentenced, as well as requested credit for time served which was granted. R. 18.

3. The record reflects that issues were raised for the first time in Henry's appeal brief. These issues not raised with the trial court were waived. **Gardner v. State**, 531 So. 2d 808-809 (Miss. 1988)

ARGUMENT

PROPOSITION I.

THE RECORD REFLECTS THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY DENIED RELIEF.

In Henry's pro se motion for post-conviction relief, he requests that his ten years sentence for transfer of controlled substance, cocaine in violation of 41-29-139(a)(1) be reduced to five years.

C.P. 7. In his pro se appeal brief, Henry argues that he was improperly found to be an habitual offender, improperly denied a hearing on his pro se motion, and improperly procedurally barred for filing more than six months after his sentence a motion for reconsideration. Appellant's brief page 1-34.

The record reflects that Henry was indicted for transfer of controlled substance, cocaine, on August 30, 2002, as an habitual offender under M.C. A. § 99-19-81. C.P. 19-20. Henry had some four prior Harrison County felony convictions for uttering forgery, grand larceny, and two burglaries of a dwelling. C.P. 19-20.

On March 6, 2006, the record reflects that Henry pled guilty to the transfer of controlled substance charge before the Circuit Court of Harrison County, the Honorable Roger T. Clark presiding. R. 1. Henry was represented by Mr Robert H. Koon. R. 1. With the assistance of Mr. Koon, a "Petition to Enter a Guilty Plea" had been completed. C.P. 21-24. That Petition clearly indicated that Henry was pleading guilty to transfer of a controlled substance as an "habitual offender under M. C. A. § 99-19-81." C.P. 21-22. The four previous felony convictions in Hancock County were listed on the second and third page of that document. C.P. 22.

That Petition also stated the factual basis for the guilty plea. Henry admitted that he transferred cocaine to undercover agent, Dianne Evans on August 30, 2002. C.P. 22.

The trial court stated in its Order denying relief on Henry's pro se motion for post-conviction relief that he was sentenced as an habitual offender under M. C. A. §99-19-81. C.P. 25. This requires a prisoner to be "sentenced to the maximum term of imprisonment prescribed for such felony, and such sentence shall not be reduced or suspended nor shall such person be eligible for parole or probation." C.P. 27.

In Green v. State, 631 So. 2d 167, 176 (Miss. 1994), the Supreme Court stated that sentencing was in the trial court's discretion. This is where the sentence is within the limits established by statute.

So long as the sentence imposed is within the statutory limits, sentencing is generally a matter of trial court discretion. **Wallace v. State**, 607 So. 2d 1184, 1188 (Miss. 1992).

In **Johnson v. State** 511 So.2d 1360, *1367 (Miss.1987), the Court stated that the life sentence that Johnson received as a 99-19-81 habitual offender was that required by law for his conviction for rape.

Miss. Code Ann. § 99-19-81 provides that a person convicted of a felony who has previously been convicted of two separate felonies arising out of separate incidents at different times and who shall have been sentenced to separate terms of one year or more, shall, for the principal offense, be sentenced to the maximum term of imprisonment prescribed therefor and that such sentence shall not be reduced or suspended nor shall such person be eligible for parole or probation.

The maximum term of imprisonment for the crime of rape for which Johnson was convicted is life imprisonment, and that, indeed, is the sentence imposed by the jury. Miss. Code Ann. § 97-3-65(2) (Supp.1985). The sentence imposed upon Johnson was, therefore, that required by law.

The Appellee would submit that the record reflects that Henry's sentence was within the discretion of the trial court. The trial court's sentence of ten years based upon the recommendation of the prosecution was well within the range provided by statute for transfer of cocaine. See M. C.

A. § 41-29-139(a)(1). R. 17-19. Since the record reflected that Henry was sentenced as "an habitual offender" under 99-19-81, the trial court correctly found that he lacked authority under that statute to alter or reduce his sentence.

In **Hebert v. State** 864 So.2d 1041, 1045 (Miss. App. 2004), the Court relied upon **Meeks v. State**, 781 So. 2d 109, 114(¶ 14) (Miss. 2001) in finding that granting a hearing is within the trial court's discretion. It need not be granted where assertions are contradicted by the record taken from a movant's guilty plea hearing.

¶ 11. It is noteworthy that Frank also alleges that he should have been afforded an evidentiary hearing before the circuit judge. A trial court has considerable discretion in determining whether to grant an evidentiary hearing. **Meeks v. State**, 781 So.2d 109, 114 (¶ 14) (Miss.2001). Not every motion for post-conviction relief filed in the trial court must be afforded a full adversarial hearing. **Jones v. State**, 795 So.2d 589, 590 (¶ 3) (Miss. Ct. App.2001). A trial judge may disregard the assertions made by a post-conviction movant where, as here, they are substantially contradicted by the court record of proceedings that led up to the entry of a judgment of guilt. **White v. State**, 818 So. 2d 369, 371 (¶ 4) (Miss. Ct. App.2002).

The record indicates that Henry stated in his Petition To Enter a Guilty Plea, as well as under oath at his guilty plea hearing that he understood the thirty year maximum sentence, as well as the ten year recommended sentence by the prosecution for his conviction for sale of cocaine. C.P. 22; R. 7;17. The record also reflects that Henry stated in his petition, and acknowledged by his silence at his guilty plea hearing that he was pleading guilty as an M. C. A. § 99-19-81 habitual offender. The Appellee would submit that this issue is lacking in merit.

PROPOSITION II

THE RECORD REFLECTS THAT HENRY RECEIVED EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL.

Henry also believes that he did not receive effective assistance of counsel. He complains that his counsel did not present "non-statutory mitigating evidence" for reduction of his sentence at his sentencing. C.P. 14. He also complains about Mr. Koon's being allowed to withdraw from representing him. However, he admits he was represented prior to and during his guilty plea motion hearing. Appellant's brief page 11-26.

To the contrary, the record reflects that Mr. Koon represented Henry prior to and during his guilty plea hearing. He assisted Henry in filling out his Petition To Enter a Guilty Plea. C.P. 21-24. There is a certification of counsel from Mr. Koon included in the record which was attached to Henry's sworn and signed Petition. C.. 24. The record also reflects that Koon assisted Henry by representing him at his guilty plea hearing. R. 1-19.

In his Petition, Henry admitted that he was "satisfied with the advice and help he(Mr. Koon) has given me..." R. 22.

At his guilty plea hearing, the trial court questioned not only Henry but also his counsel, Mr. Koon. Koon was questioned about Henry's understanding of his transfer of the cocaine charge. He was also questioned about Henry's understanding of the consequences of having his guilty plea accepted. This included Henry admitting under oath that he understood what was included in his Petition to enter a guilty plea. R. 3-4.

Henry also admitted under oath that he was satisfied with the services provided by his attorney.

Court: All right. Let me ask you if you are satisfied with the services of your attorney and the advice he's given you in your case, Mr. Henry?

Henry: Yes, sir. R. 4. (Emphasis by Appellee).

The record reflects that the Henry knew that he was pleading guilty as an habitual offender.

Court:...All right, state, what do you have to say to Mr. Henry?

Smith: Your Honor, the state would recommend ten years to serve without the hope of parole.

Court: He is a habitual offender?

Smith: Yes, your Honor. R. 17. (Emphasis by Appellee)

Finally, Mr. Koon also pointed out that Henry had a letter of recommendation from a prison chaplain, and that he had completed a Bible correspondence course while incarcerated. He also requested that Henry be given credit for the nine months that he had already served in prison. R. 18.

For Henry to be successful in his ineffective assistance claim, he must satisfy the two-pronged test set forth in **Strickland v. Washington**, 466 U.S. 668, 687, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 2064-65, 80 L. Ed. 2d 674, 693-95 (1984) and adopted by this Court in **Stringer v. State**, 454 So. 2d 468, 476-477 (Miss. 1984). Henry must prove: (1) that his counsel's performance was deficient, and (2) that this supposed deficient performance prejudiced his defense. The burden of proving both prongs rests with Henry. **McQuarter v. State**, 574 So. 2d 685, 687 (Miss. 1990). Finally, Henry must show that there is a reasonable probability that but for the errors of his counsel, the sentence of the trial court would have been different. **Nicolau v. State**, 612 So. 2d 1080, 1086 (Miss. 1992), **Ahmad v. State**, 603 So. 2d 843, 848 (Miss. 1992).

The second prong of the **Strickland v. Washington**,, 466 U.S. 668, 685, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 80 L. Ed. 2d 674 (1984) is to determine whether there is "a reasonable probability" that but for the alleged errors of Mr. Koon, his counsel, the result of Henry's guilty plea and sentence would have been different. This is to be determined from "the totality of the circumstances" involved in his

case.

Appellee would submit that based upon the record we have cited, there is a lack of evidence for holding that there is "a reasonable probability" that Mr. Koon erred in assisting Henry in filing out a guilty plea petition and entering a guilty plea based in part upon a negotiated reduced ten year sentence.

As stated in **Strickland**: and quoted in **Mohr v. State**, 584 So. 2d 426, 430 (Miss. 1991): Under the first prong, the movant 'must show that the counsel's performance was deficient and that the deficient performance prejudiced the defense. Here there is a strong presumption of competence. Under the second prong, the movant must show that there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding would have been different. A reasonable probability is a probability sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome.' The defendant must prove both prongs of the test. <u>Id</u>. 698.

Henry bears the burden of proving that both parts of the tests have been met. Leatherwood v State, 473 So. 2d 964, 968 (Miss. 1985).

The burden of proving ineffective assistance of counsel is on the defendant to show that the counsel's performance was deficient and that the deficient performance prejudiced the defense.

When an appeal involves post conviction relief, the Mississippi Supreme Court has held, "that where a party offers only his affidavit, then his ineffective assistance of counsel claim is without merit." Lindsay v. State, 720 So. 2d 182, 184 (6 (Miss. 1998); Smith v. State, 490 So. 2d 860 (Miss. 1986). There were no affidavits filed in support of any of Henry's allegations of inadequate services rendered on his behalf by his guilty plea counsel.

In Johnston v. State, 730 So. 2d 534, 538 (Miss. 1997), the Court stated that the burden of showing prejudice could not be met by merely alleging it.

Additionally, there is a further requirement which Johnston must hurdle, prejudice. Claims alleging a deficiency in the attorney performance are subject to a general requirement that the defendant affirmatively prove prejudice. **Strickland**, 466 U. S. at 693., 104 S. Ct. at 2067. However, Johnston fails to make any allegations of

prejudice. As in **Earley**, Johnson must affirmatively prove, not merely allege that prejudice resulted from counsel's deficient performance. *Earley*, 595 So. 2d at 433. Johnston has failed on the second prong of **Strickland**. Having failed to meet either prong of the **Strickland** test, we find that there is no merit to the ineffective assistance of counsel claim raised by Johnston.

In Ferguson v. State, 507 So. 2d 94, 97 (Miss. 1987), quoting Strickland, 466 U S at 687, 104 S. Ct. 2052.

Although it need not be outcome determinative in the strict sense, it [deficient assistance of counsel] must be grave enough to 'undermine confidence' in the reliability of the whole proceeding.

The Appellee would submit that the record summarized and cited above indicates that Mr. Robert Koon effectively represented Henry in the instant cause. As a result of Mr. Koon's efforts, Mr. Henry is serving a ten year rather than a thirty year sentence. The fact that Mr Henry's ten year sentence is without benefit of any reduction is the result of the statutory requirements of M. C. A. § 99-19-81, and not the result of any lack of effort of Mr. Koon's behalf in attempting to assist Henry before the Circuit Court of Harrison County. The record reflects that Mr. Koon did present evidence favorable to Henry prior to sentencing, including requesting credit for time served. R. 18. This issue is also lacking in merit.

PROPOSITION III

THERE WAS NO MERIT TO HENRY'S OTHER CLAIMS NO RAISED WITH THE TRIAL COURT.

In Henry's pro se appellant's brief, he mentions various issues not raised in his motion with the trial court. These include assertions about alleged denials of his Constitutional right to a legal sentence, to a hearing on his various motions for relief, to a right to a proper indictment and proper proof of his habitual offender status. Appellant's brief page 1-34.

To the contrary, to the best of Appellee's knowledge, these other issues were not raised with the trial court in Henry's pro se motions. C.P. 5-18; 33-72. Therefore, they can not be raised for the first time on appeal.

In Gardner v. State, 531 So. 2d 808-809(Miss. 1988), this Court found that issues not raised with the trial court in a post conviction relief motion could not be raised for the first time on appeal to this court.

The issue regarding the constitutionality vel non of Sect. 97-1-1, M.C.A. (1972), was not raised in Gardner's motion for post conviction relief and may not be raise now. **Colburn v. State**, 431 So. 2d 1111, 1114 (Miss. 1983)

As stated under the statement of the facts, Henry was indicted for transfer of cocaine to undercover agent, Diane Evans. C.P. 19-20. He acknowledged knowing the charge against him both in his Petition To Enter a Guilty Plea, and in his testimony at his guilty plea. He acknowledged knowing the 30 year maximum sentence as well as the ten year recommended sentence. C.P. 22; R. 7. He admitted there was a factual basis for his plea. R. 9.. He admitted that he had not been coerced or promised anything in exchange for his guilty plea. R. 6. He admitted knowing the Constitutional rights he was waiving by pleading guilty. R. 5-6.

His Petition, and his silence when the prosecution stated at his guilty plea hearing that he was

pleading guilty as "an habitual offender" was sufficient for establishing that he knew he was pleading guilty as a 99-19-81 habitual offender. C.P. 21.

Therefore, the Appellee would submit, as stated under proposition I and II, there were no errors or flaws involved Henry's indictment, voluntary plea, and his ten year sentence as recommended by the prosecution. The record reflects that Henry was not denied any of his constitutional rights during his guilty plea hearing, his sentencing, or in the trial court's orders denying relief on his various post trial motions.

The Appellee would submit that the record reflects that issues not raised with the trial court in Henry's motion for post conviction relief were waived. They can not be raised for the first time on appeal. These issues are also lacking in merit.

CONCLUSION

The trial court's denial of relief should be affirmed for the reasons cited in this brief.